
Licensing Sub-Committee
Date: Friday, 2 July 2021
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Committee Room 1, County Hall, Dorchester, 

DT1 1XJ
Membership: (Quorum 3 ) 
Councillors Emma Parker, Mike Barron and Brian Heatley

Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall , Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ

For more information about this agenda please telephone Democratic Services   
01305 224202 elaine.tibble@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

For easy access to the Council agendas and minutes download the free public 
app Mod.gov for use on your iPad, Android and Windows tablet. Once 
downloaded select Dorset Council.
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting with the exception of any items 
listed in the exempt part of this agenda. Please note that if you attend a committee 
meeting and are invited to make oral representations your name, together with a summary 
of your comments will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. Please refer to the guide 
to public participation at committee meetings for more information about speaking at 
meetings. There is a Hearing Loop Induction System available for public use on request. 
Please speak to a Democratic Services Officer for assistance in using this facility. 
Recording, photographing and using social media at meetings Dorset Council is 
committed to being open and transparent in the way it carries out its business whenever 
possible. Anyone can film, audio-record, take photographs, and use social media such as 
tweeting and blogging to report the meeting when it is open to the public, so long as they 
conform to the Protocol for filming and audio recording of public council meetings.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

Page No.

1  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND STATEMENT FOR THE 
PROCEDURE OF THE MEETING

5 - 10

To elect a Chairman for the meeting and the Chairman to present and 
explain the procedure for the meeting. 

2  APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To disclose any pecuniary, other registerable or personal interest as 
set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their disclosure 
councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of the 
interest and any action they propose to take as part of their 
declaration. 

If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer 
in advance of the meeting.

4  URGENT ITEMS

To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 
of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall 
be recorded in the minutes.

5  NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION FOR LAST POST, 
DORCHESTER

11 - 46

An application has been made for a new premises licence for the Last 
Post in Dorchester. The application has been out to public consultation 
and has attracted a relevant representation. A Licensing Sub-
Committee must consider the application and representations at a 
public hearing. 

6  NEW PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION FOR WELLS COTTAGE, 
BEDCHESTER

47 - 74



An application has been made for a new premises licence for Wells 
Cottage in Bedchester near Shaftesbury. The application has been out 
to public consultation and has attracted relevant representations. A 
Licensing Sub-Committee must consider the application and 
representations at a public hearing. 

7  EXEMPT BUSINESS TAXI LICENCE APPLICATION

To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following 
item in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the 
meaning of paragraph 1 of Part 1 of schedule 12 A to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variations) Order 2006 – EXEMPT 
INFORMATION  

The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the 
item of business is considered.

8  EXEMPT APPENDIX 75 - 82



This page is intentionally left blank



THE LICENSING ACT 2003 (HEARINGS) REGULATIONS 2005

Rights of a Party

1. A party has the right to attend the hearing and may be represented by any 
person. 

2. A party is entitled to give further information where the authority has asked 
for clarification.

3. A party can question another party, and/or address the authority, with 
consent of the authority.  

Failure to Attend

4. If the authority is informed a party does not wish to attend, the hearing may 
proceed in their absence. 

5. If a party has not indicated their attendance and fails to attend the hearing 
may be adjourned if considered in the public interest, or hold the hearing 
ensuring the party’s representation is considered. 

6. Where the authority adjourns the hearing it shall notify the parties of the 
date, time and place. 

Procedural Information

7. At the start of the hearing, the authority shall explain the procedure which 
it proposes to follow and shall consider any request for permission for 
another person to appear at the hearing.

8. A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority and 
cross-examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considers 
that it is required. 

9. The authority will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to speak. 

10. The authority may require any person behaving disruptively to leave, and 
may refuse that person to return, but such a person may, before the end of 
the hearing, submit in writing information they would have been entitled to 
give orally had they not been required to leave.

FOOTNOTE:

In relation to all other matters governed by the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 any party or their representative may contact the Licensing 
Services at Dorset Council and they will be provided with a full copy of the 
regulations on request.

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURE

1. At the start of the meeting the Chairman will introduce:
 the members of the sub-committee
 the council officers present
 the parties and their representatives

2. The Chairman will then deal with any appropriate agenda items.

3. The Licensing Officer will be asked to outline the details of the application,   
including details of any withdrawn representations. 

4. The applicant or their representative is then invited to present their case.

5. Committee members will be invited to ask questions.

6. Where appropriate the Responsible Bodies e.g. representatives of Police, 
Fire Services, Environmental Services or Trading Standards will be invited 
to address the sub-committee on any relevant representations they may 
have.

7. The Chairman may then allow an opportunity for questions.

8. The Chairman will ask any person who has made representations, who 
have already expressed a wish to do so, to address the sub-committee.  
The sub-committee will have read all the papers before them, including 
any letters of representation.  Members of the public are asked to keep 
their comments concise and to the point.

9. The Local Ward Member, if present, will be given an opportunity to 
address the sub-committee.

10. All parties will be given the opportunity to “sum up” their case.

11. The Chairman will ask the Legal Advisor if all relevant points have been 
addressed before advising all parties present that the sub-committee will 
withdraw from the meeting to consider its decision in private.  The sub-
committee will be accompanied by the Democratic Services Officer and 
the Legal Advisor can be called upon to offer legal guidance.

12. On returning the Chairman will:

Page 6



 Notify all those present of the sub-committee’s decision (or indicate 
when it will be made)

 Give brief details of any conditions attached to the licence approval;
Or
 Outline the reasons for the refusal
 Inform that detailed reasons will follow in writing (unless given on the 

day)
 Inform those present of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court

NOTE

The Chairman may vary this procedure, as circumstances require but will have 
regard to the rules of natural justice and the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005.

The meeting will take place in public.  However, the public can be excluded 
from all or part of the meeting where the sub-committee considers that the 
public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the meeting or that 
part of the meeting, taking place in public.

Under no circumstances must the parties or their witnesses offer the sub-
committee information in the absence of the other parties.

The Chairman and the Sub-Committee have discretion whether to allow new 
information or documents to be submitted and read at the meeting.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE PROCEDURE

1. At the start of the meeting the Chairman will introduce:

 the members of the sub-committee
 the officers present
 the parties and their representatives

2. The Chairman will then deal with any appropriate agenda items.

3. The Licensing Officer will be asked to outline the details of the application

4. The applicant or their representative is then invited to present their case.

5. Committee members will be invited to ask questions.

6. The Chairman may then allow an opportunity for questions.

7. Parties will then “sum up” their case.

8.. The Chairman will ask the Legal Advisor if all relevant points have been addressed 
before advising all parties that the sub-committee will withdraw from the meeting to 
consider its decision in private. The sub-committee will be accompanied by the 
Democratic Services Officer and the Legal Advisor to offer procedural advice and legal 
guidance.

9. On returning the Chairman will:

 Notify all those present of the sub-committee’s decision 
(or indicate when it will be made)

 Inform that detailed reasons will follow in writing (unless given on the day)
 Inform those present of their right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court

NOTE

Under no circumstances must the parties or their representatives offer the sub-
committee information in the absence of the other parties.

The Chairman and the Committee have discretion whether to allow new information or 
documents to be submitted and read at the hearing.

May 2019

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee
2 July 2021
New Premises Licence Application for Last 
Post, Dorchester

For Decision

Portfolio Holder: Cllr J Haynes, Customer and Community Services

Local Councillor(s): Cllrs L Fry and A Canning

Executive Director: J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place
 

Report Author: Aileen Powell
Title: Licensing Team Leader
Tel: 01258 484022
Email: aileen.powell@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Report Status:  Public

Recommendation: The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light of 
written and oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers 
appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of;

a) The prevention of crime and disorder
b) The prevention of public nuisance
c) Public safety
d) The protection of children from harm

Reason for Recommendation: The Sub-Committee must consider the oral 
representations and information given at the hearing before reaching a decision.      

1. Executive Summary 

An application has been made for a new premises licence for the Last Post in 
Dorchester. The application has been out to public consultation and has attracted 
a relevant representation. A Licensing Sub-Committee must consider the 
application and representations at a public hearing. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



2. Financial Implications

Any decision of the Sub-Committee could lead to an appeal by any of the parties 
involved that could incur costs.
 
3. Climate implications

None

4. Other Implications

Public Health and Community Safety

5. Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has 
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low

6. Equalities Impact Assessment

Not Applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Application
Appendix 2 – Representations from Responsible Authorities
Appendix 3 – Representation from Resident 
Appendix 4 – Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule

8. Background Papers

Licensing Act  
Live Music Act
Section 182 Guidance  
Dorset Council Licensing Policy
LGA Councillors Handbook  
EHRC - Guide to the Human Rights Act for Public Authorities  

9. Details

9.1. Glenn Chadwick has applied for a premises licence at the Last Post Unit 1, 
43 South Street, Dorchester, DT1 1DH for a ten-year period ending on 1 
June 2031. 

Page 12

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/part/3/crossheading/variation-of-licences
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/2/contents/enacted
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/business-consumers-licences/licences-and-permits/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/pdfs/statement-of-licensing-policies/dorset-council-statement-of-licensing-policy-final-01-02-2020.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/10%2036_Licensing_Act_2003_V04%203_1.pdf
file:///C:/Users/powella.NORDON/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/IE/YZ6XJIW5/human_rights_human_lives_a_guide_for_public_authorities.pdf


9.2. The description of the premises within the application form is that it will be a 
café/bar serving food and drink inside and outside. The full application and 
plan for the premises is attached at appendix 1.

9.3. The premises was previously licensed under the name of Dunovaria 
between July 2013 and October 2015 when it was suspended. That licence 
allowed for the sale of alcohol between 08:00 and 23:59 every day of the 
week, and up to 00:30 on Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve.

9.4. The application is to permit the on and off sales of alcohol: -

Every Day 08:00 to 23:59
Christmas Eve/New Year’s Eve 08:00 to 01:00

With all forms of regulated entertainment (except boxing and wrestling): -

Every Day 08:00 to 23:00
Christmas Eve/New Year’s Eve 08:00 to 01:00

And Late-Night Refreshment, inside and outside: -  

Every Day 23:00 to 23:59
Christmas Eve/New Year’s Eve 23:00 to 01:00

The regulated entertainment is for indoors only as Mr Chadwick has agreed 
to withdraw that part of the application for live and recorded music outside. 
He has also agreed that all regulated entertainment will finish by 23:00 and 
not 23:59 as stated on the application.

9.5. The application has been advertised on the premises, in a newspaper and 
the Council’s web site.

9.6. Two representations were originally received from the responsible 
authorities, namely the Police and Environmental Health. Following their 
representations Mr Chadwick has agreed to extra conditions being added to 
any licence if it is granted and both responsible authorities have withdrawn 
their objections. The representations and the responses from Mr Chadwick 
are attached at appendix 2.

 
9.7. One Representation from a member of the public remains and is included in 

full at appendix 3, together with the response from Mr Chadwick.

9.8. The conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule and the 
conditions suggested by the Police and EH are attached at appendix 4.

Page 13



10. Considerations

10.1. Paragraphs 9.42 to 9.44 of the Section 182 Guidance sets how the 
Authority should decide what actions are appropriate.

“9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions 
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their 
areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a case-
by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or 
objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises 
user as the case may be. 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified 
as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and 
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what 
action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While this does 
not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step 
will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential 
burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder 
(such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable 
activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority 
ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are 
limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 
outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence 
variations, the licensing authority should consider wider issues such 
as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative 
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the track 
record of the business. Further advice on determining what is 
appropriate when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is 
provided in Chapter 10. The licensing authority is expected to come to 
its determination based on an assessment of the evidence on both the 
risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.”

10.3.  The Live Music Act 2012 allows any premises with a licence that allows the 
consumption of alcohol on the premises to have live amplified music 
between 08:00 and 23:00 without a licence. This only applies when the 
audience is under 500 people. The Legislative Reform (Entertainment 

Page 14



Licensing) Order 2014 has amended the Licensing Act so that there is a 
similar provision for recorded music, and also states that any conditions 
relating to any of this entertainment would not have any effect between 
8am and 11pm. There is a safeguard within the Licensing Act that at a 
Review hearing the provisions of the Live Music Act could be disapplied.

11. Recommendation

11.1. The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light of written and 
oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers appropriate 
and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of;

a) the prevention of crime and disorder
b) the prevention of public nuisance
c) public safety
d) the protection of children from harm.

11.2. The steps that the Sub-Committee may take are: 

a) to grant the licence subject to such conditions as the authority 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
and the mandatory conditions

b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates;

c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the designated premises 
supervisor;

d) to reject the application.

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities 
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is 
included within the report.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



P
age 36



P
age 37



Police – 17 May 2021 
 

I have had an opportunity to fully review your application and given the timings are the same as the 
licence previously held by the premises under the name Durnovaria, then I can see no reason to 
raise an objection from a licensing perspective. 
  
The conditions that you have offered, I am sure will be written more comprehensively by the Council 
and I am pleased to see that CCTV, Challenge 21, a drugs policy, staff training, membership of pub 
watch and signage which I trust will remind your patrons to have respect for neighbours and leave 
the premises quietly are all included. 
  
I would ask that two items not mentioned are included as conditions on the licence, namely an 
incident log and refusals book. 
  
Also I note the words ‘risk assessment’ under the public safety condition and I would ask that this 
appears on the licence as ‘ when the premises are used for any booked event (to include as 
examples live music and functions), the DPS will undertake a full written risk assessment on the need 
for the employment of SIA registered door staff.’ 
  
I trust this will be satisfactory and await to hear from you in due course. 
  
Regards 
  
John Bean 
Licensing Officer 
Dorset Police 
   

Response - 17 May 2021 
Good afternoon John 

  
Thank you for your time to consider our application 

Risk assessment will be done as a matter of course and be available for inspection anytime 
along with log books 

signage has already been sorted and will be displayed in prominent places  
  
  
many thanks  
  
Glenn Chadwick 

 

Page 38

aileen.powell
Typewriter
Appendix 2 - Responsible Authority Representations



EH – 7 May 2021 
 

I wish to object under the nuisance objective of the Licensing Act.  The premises was formally 
Durnovaria.  To date I have not been made aware of any structural changes to the premises to 
prevent the conveyance of sound from the premises to the residential properties above which share 
the same ceiling/floor.  The lobby that was formally in place and is shown on the plan supplied does 
go some way to prevent the noise of the patrons internal to external and should remain in place or 
be more robust in structure. 
  
The following conditions if agreed by the applicant would enable Environmental Protection to 
withdraw our objection: 
  

• No regulated entertainment externally. 
• No regulated entertainment after 23.00hrs internally except for the non-standard timings 

listed for Christmas Eve and New Year’s Eve. 
• No external speakers shall be fitted to convey amplified music or speech. 
• If external seating is granted this shall be removed by 21.00hrs. 

  
The supply of alcohol and late night refreshment shall cease at midnight.  Door staff /SIA should be 
made aware that their actions in the street will be audible to those living above as well. 
  
The applicant should be advised that whilst the amplified music and speech has been restricted to 
before 23.00hrs there is still the potential for the music and noise from patrons to be conveyed at 
such a volume that would be deemed a statutory nuisance in the residential properties above and as 
such careful management of the site would be required.  It is strongly recommended that a noise 
management plan be drawn up  by a qualified and competent acoustic consultant.  If suitable 
management and structural changes are made to improve the control of sound, a variation may be 
considered to enable regulated entertainment to occur later in the day but at this stage, with the 
known nature of the property the objection stands unless the conditions above are agreed. 
 

Jane Williams  
Team Leader Environmental Protection 

 

 

Response - 12 May 2021 
 

I have no objections to those conditions 
and happy to work with anyone that comes and speaks to us now or in the future 
 
Many Thanks 
 
Glenn 
 

Page 39



Appendix 3 – Representation from Resident 
 

Representation - 1 June 2021 
 

RE: The Last Post, Dorchester - Licence Application - Mr Glenn Chadwick 
Without Prejudice 

 
I write with reference to the above licence application and firstly wish to point out that I 
have no objection in principle to an appropriate café/bar occupying the premises. However, 
I do not believe a ‘live music venue with amplified music’ is suitable within this residential 
development, I am most concerned with the resulting noise pollution. Mr Chadwick's 
application for a live music licence seven days a week up until midnight, outside as well as 
in, is totally unreasonable and I suggest that the following would be fairer:  

• Acoustic (unplugged) music only with performances to finish at 11pm on all days. 
• Live or piped music should not be permitted outside. This is a public thoroughfare 

and it would be detrimental to the residents of the ten apartments within the 
complex as well as all within the locale.  

• Alcohol consumption until 11pm each day and bar closing at 11pm, with every effort 
being made to move people on from the establishment after closing (Hardys in 
Trinity Street, run by the same applicant, has had issues with this). 

• Fully effective soundproofing to be installed by Mr Chadwick (as the agent of 
change) between the café’s ceiling and the flat above - For reference, the leases of 
the flats state that no-one within the building should cause noise disruption to any 
part of the building between the hours of 11pm and 8am. The National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF2) came into force on 24th July 2018 and states “Where a 
new music venue is proposed near an existing residential building, then the ‘agent 
of change’ – the music venue – would need to ensure it included appropriate 
measures to reduce noise.” I can understand why music venues object to complaints 
from people who choose to move next door but when a new residential 
development is placed next to a pub, the developer is the ‘agent of change’ and 
responsible for soundproofing the residential building. However, in this instance, the 
residential complex was there first - built in 2007. 

I would also like to point out that Mr Chadwick will obviously need to supply a smoking area 
for the establishment – where will this be and how will the smoke and noise of people 
congregating outside be prevented from affecting the local residents? 

  
I'm also concerned that this new live music venue will be similar to Mr Chadwick's other 
venue, Hardys on Trinity Street, which received a written warning for continued anti-social 
behaviour in September 2020 (Dorset Council Ref: 23866 Officer Jane Williams). A letter 
from Environmental Protection states “Mr Chadwick agreed to turn it down but explained 
he didn’t like doing that as he is a music venue and that his business requires it to have 
music at a level people could enjoy.” Hardys is a music venue, with no residential 
accommodation above but the Old Post Office is not and amplified music in a residential 

Page 40

https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed


complex would be wholly inappropriate, as well as being against the terms of the leases 
held by these properties.  
  
I also note, following the above written warning, environmental health stated that “Mr 
Chadwick keeps records of sound assessments undertaken both internally and externally 
throughout the course of an evening when live music is played”. With this in mind, I cannot 
see how music levels can be monitored within the residential property above The Last Post 
as Mr Chadwick has no access? Further to this point, one of the conditions listed in the 
Hardys licence is that “no noise shall emanate from the premises or vibration to be 
transmitted through the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.” 

  
PREVIOUS USE OF PREMISES 

  
Durnovaria Wine Bar (2013 to 2015) 

I note that the previous occupant (Jim Ross of Durnovaria Wine Bar) was granted a licence 
to serve alcohol only until 11pm Monday to Saturday and 10.30pm on Sundays, with the 
service of cold foods only (i.e. no kitchen facilities). He also restricted music to acoustic only 
and was not permitted the use of alcohol outside. A second soundproof door was installed 
which presumably will remain in place (please confirm). Although Mr Ross proposed a wine 
bar suitable for the area with occasional acoustic music, he was still not permitted a licence 
past 11pm, even on New Year’s Eve. Based on this precedent, It would be difficult to 
understand how somebody who is proposing a ‘live music venue with amplified music' 
would be given a licence past 11pm. 
  
Starbucks (2007 till 2012) 

In May 2009, Starbucks were refused permission for any seating in New Street as there 
would be no room for pedestrians to walk by. In September 2009, Starbucks were granted a 
permit for two tables and six chairs to be positioned outside the premises in South Street - 
exact wording being “The use of the application site shall not be used for customers 
outside of the hours of 7.30amand 6.00pm Mondays to Saturdays and outside the hours 
of 9.30am to 4.00pm on any other day. REASON: To define the permission and to 
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring occupiers from general disturbance from the use 
of the application site beyond these times having regard to Policy DA6 of the West Dorset 
District Local Plan.” This plan is valid until at least 2031.  
  
In conclusion, an appropriate café/wine bar with noise pollution and reasonable time 
restrictions would add value to the area - but a live music venue including amplified music, 
with the possible associated anti-social behaviour as seen in Hardys in Trinity Street, does 
not seem appropriate for either the residents of the already in-situ development or for the 
main high street & public thoroughfare of the county town. 
 

 

 

  

Page 41

https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed
https://www.odwebp.svc.ms/embed


Response from Applicant 3 June 2021 

 
Thank you for the email  
 
We respond as follows:- 
 
we will be limiting the live music to duo and soloist only no bands so level of amplified sound will be 
at a much lower level than that of rock bands etc 
As already agreed with a previous objection and have agreed with conditions no music will be played 
outside we see no problem with serving alcohol etc within the scope of the license we have applied 
for cannot see that there would be any difference to stop serving and closing at 11pm or 11.59pm 
As to sound proofing well i see no need for it as we will have stopped live music before the 11pm 
deadline therefore falling within permitted guide lines 
As to smoking area that will be out the front of the building where there is a council supplied 
smoking bin 
There is no comparison between Hardy's and the last post and to imply such is drawing compassions 
where there none the last post is a cafe/bar Hardys is a late-night Music venue and the complaint 
against hardy's as sufficiently dealt with 
 
Durnovaria had a full license for sales and music until 11.59 each day as seen in the license 
WDPL0650 so i cannot see why the complainant says it was until only 11pm 
We will be planning to apply for outdoor seating but again this has been covered in previous 
objections and conditions agreed to be placed on license 
 
I hope this address all points any further information needed please get back to me  
 
 
Many thanks 
 
 
Glenn Chadwick 
  

Page 42



Further Email from Resident 9 June 2021 
 
RE: The Last Post, Dorchester - Licence Application - Mr Glenn Chadwick 
Without Prejudice 
 
In answer to your email of Friday 4th June, my concerns have not yet been alleviated and I do not 
wish to have my representation withdrawn until the following one condition has been considered 
regarding the licence: 
 

• I am aware that with the granting of the licence for the café/bar underneath my residential 
flat there can be no restrictions on amplified music between 8pm and 11pm. For this reason, 
it is imperative to address noise pollution (I note Environmental Health ‘strongly recommend 
that a noise management plan be drawn up by a qualified and competent acoustic 
consultant’). My partner is a fully professional sound engineer spanning a 40 year music 
career that involves the building of recording studios and, with his considerable acoustic 
knowledge, he is mindful of the huge implications of amplified music on the residential 
property directly above the venue, currently without soundproofing. Mr Chadwick states 
that music will be solo/duos only but there can be no restrictions placed upon the licence 
preventing louder bands with drum kits. 
 

• Durnovaria Wine Bar (which closed in 2015) cannot be used as a precedent for the issuing of 
a new licence. In August 2018, the UK Parliament passed an amendment to the National 
Planning & Policy Framework (NPPF), which included the ‘Agent of Change’ Principle. Under 
this principle, a live music venue opening next to a residential development would need to 
provide suitable mitigation before opening, in this instance in the form of soundproofing the 
boundary between the two properties. Please note, notices to respect residents and the 
closing of windows will not protect the property above from unacceptable levels of noise 
disturbance and vibration through the ceiling. 

 

• I do not have a problem with a café/bar opening in the premises and I support live music 
venues but the residents of Crown Post Court should not incur unreasonable or unnecessary 
interference. Intrusive noise and vibration can be considered a statutory nuisance at any 
time, not just after 11pm. Surely it is in everyone’s interests, especially the landlord’s, to 
address this concern before a licence is issued.  If decibel levels should reach an 
unacceptable level, incidents will be logged and reported In the interests of residential 
amenity. 

 
Finally, as touched upon in my previous email, I would just like clarification around the issue of hot 
food and smells: 
 

• When change of use was granted to A4 in 2013, the decision stated: “The applicant intends 
to serve food, which is not materially different to the previous café use. If there is a future 
need for additional extraction equipment for the kitchen this would be subject to separate 
planning and listed buildings applications where the impact on the extraction relating to 
noise or smell would be given proper consideration in consultation with the Council’s 
Environmental Health officers. Environmental health legislation provides additional controls 
over these aspects.” Does this still stand as the smell of cigarette smoke rising from the 
premises has recently been noticed in the flat above? 

 
Thank you. 
 

Page 43



 

Prevention of crime and disorder 
 

A CCTV system shall be installed at the premises. The CCTV system shall be 
maintained in working condition and record the premises 24 hours every day. 
Recordings to be retained for a minimum of 28 days and be made available to the 
Police or officers of the Council upon request and be of evidential quality.  
 
All cameras must be tamper-proof and all equipment shall have a constant and 
accurate time and date generation. There must be sufficient camera able to cope 
with operating illumination and located to cover all public areas within the premises. 
 
At least one member of staff on duty during the operation hours will be fully trained in 
the use of CCTV. They must be able to download/copy any required recordings and 
any recordings made must be in a retrievable format and must be completed within 
twelve hours of a request being made by an authorised person. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that an “Incident report register” is kept in 
a bound book, in which full details of all incidents are recorded. This shall be 
completed as soon as possible and, in any case, no later than the close of business 
on the day of the incident. The time and date when the report was completed, and by 
whom, is to form part of the entry. The register is to be kept on the premises at all 
times and shall be produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or the 
Police when required.  
 
The Premises must have a written drugs policy which all staff at the premises shall 
receive regular training on and written records of such training will be maintained. 
 
Any drugs found on the premises will be seized and will be recorded in a Police 
issued drugs index and stored in a Police approved lockable safe on the premises or 
handed to Police if an arrest is made. 
 

Public safety 
 
When the premises are used for any booked event (including live music events) the 
Designated Premises Supervisor will undertake a full written risk assessment on the 
need for the employment of SIA registered door staff. 
 

Prevention of public nuisance 
 
No regulated entertainment externally 
 

Page 44

aileen.powell_1
Typewriter
Appendix 4 - Conditions Consistent with Operating Schedule and/or agreed with Responsible Authority



No regulated entertainment after 2300 hours internally except for the non-standard 
timings listed for Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve. 
 
No external speakers shall be fitted to convey amplified music. 
 
External seating shall be removed by 2100 hours. 
 
A clear notice shall be displayed at every exit from the premises to instruct 
customers to respect the needs of local residents and leave the premises and the 
area quietly.  
 
The licence holder shall ensure that adequate measures are in place to remove litter 
or waste arising from their customers and to prevent such litter from accumulating in 
the immediate vicinity of their premises. In particular, where necessary the premises 
licence holder shall ensure that adequate measures are in place to provide 
customers with sufficient receptacles for the depositing of waste materials such as 
food wrappings, drinks containers, smoking related litter, etc.  
 

Protection of children from harm 
 
The Licensee will adopt a "Challenge 21" policy where all customers who appear to 
be under the age of 21 and attempt to purchase alcohol or other age-restricted 
products are asked for proof of their age.  
 
The Licensee to prominently display notices advising customers of the "Challenge 
21" policy. The following proofs of age are the only ones to be accepted:  
 
  Proof of age cards bearing the "Pass" hologram symbol  
  UK Photo Driving licence  
  Passport  
 
Staff Competence and Training:  

The Licensee will keep a written record of all staff authorised to sell alcohol, the 
record to contain the full name, home address, date of birth and national insurance 
number of each person so authorised. The staff record to be kept on the licensed 
premises and made available for inspection by the Licensing Officer, Trading 
Standards or the Police.  
 
The Licensee will ensure that each member of staff authorised to sell alcohol has 
received adequate training on the law with regard to age restricted products and that 
this has been properly documented and training records kept. The training record to 
be kept on the licensed premises and made available for inspection by the Licensing 
Officer, Trading Standards or the Police.  
 
The Licensee will ensure that each member of staff authorised to sell alcohol is fully 
aware of his /her responsibilities in relation to verifying a customer's age and is able 
to effectively question purchasers and check evidence of proof of age.  
  

Page 45



The Licensee will ensure that each member of staff authorised to sell alcohol is 
sufficiently capable and confident to confront and challenge under - 18s attempting 
to purchase alcohol.  
 
Refusals book:  
The licence holder will keep a register of refused sales of all age- restricted products 
(Refusals Book).  
  
The refusals book will contain details of time and date, description of the attempting 
purchaser, description of the age restricted products they attempted to purchase, 
reason why the sale was refused and the name/signature of the sales person 
refusing the sale.  
  
The Refusals book will be examined on a regular basis by the Licensee and date 
and time of each examination to be endorsed in the book.  
  
The Refusals Book will be kept on the licensed premises and made available for 
inspection by the Licensing Officer, Trading Standards or the Police. 

Page 46



Licensing Sub-Committee
2 July 2021
New Premises Licence Application for Wells 
Cottage, Bedchester

For Decision

Portfolio Holder: Cllr J Haynes, Customer and Community Services

Local Councillor(s): Cllr J Somper

Executive Director: J Sellgren, Executive Director of Place
 

Report Author: Aileen Powell
Title: Licensing Team Leader
Tel: 01258 484022
Email: aileen.powell@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk

Report Status:  Public

Recommendation: The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light of 
written and oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers 
appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of;

a) The prevention of crime and disorder
b) The prevention of public nuisance
c) Public safety
d) The protection of children from harm

Reason for Recommendation: The Sub-Committee must consider the oral 
representations and information given at the hearing before reaching a decision.      

1. Executive Summary 

An application has been made for a new premises licence for Wells Cottage in 
Bedchester near Shaftesbury. The application has been out to public consultation 
and has attracted relevant representations. A Licensing Sub-Committee must 
consider the application and representations at a public hearing. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



2. Financial Implications

Any decision of the Sub-Committee could lead to an appeal by any of the parties 
involved that could incur costs.
 
3. Climate implications

None

4. Other Implications

Public Health and Community Safety

5. Risk Assessment

Having considered the risks associated with this decision, the level of risk has 
been identified as:
Current Risk: Low
Residual Risk: Low

6. Equalities Impact Assessment

Not Applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix 1 – Application
Appendix 2 – Representation
Appendix 3 – Response to Representations

8. Background Papers

Licensing Act  
Live Music Act
Section 182 Guidance  
Dorset Council Licensing Policy
LGA Councillors Handbook  
EHRC - Guide to the Human Rights Act for Public Authorities  

9. Details

9.1. Nathan Kurton has applied for a new premises licence for Wells Cottage in 
the village of Bedchester, Shaftesbury, SP7 0JW.

9.2. The description of the premises within the application form is that it will be a 
luxury bed and breakfast accommodation. The full application and plan for 
the premises is attached at appendix 1.

Page 48

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/part/3/crossheading/variation-of-licences
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/2/contents/enacted
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/business-consumers-licences/licences-and-permits/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/pdfs/statement-of-licensing-policies/dorset-council-statement-of-licensing-policy-final-01-02-2020.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/10%2036_Licensing_Act_2003_V04%203_1.pdf
file:///C:/Users/powella.NORDON/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/IE/YZ6XJIW5/human_rights_human_lives_a_guide_for_public_authorities.pdf


9.3. The application is to permit the sale of alcohol, on the premises only: -

Every day (when there are guests) 12:00 to 23:00

As the plan only includes the cottage, both alcohol and any music can only 
be supplied from within the premises

9.4. The application has been advertised on the premises, in a newspaper and 
the Council’s web site.

9.5. Four representations have been received objecting to the application. The 
representations all relate to the licensing objective of “the prevention of 
public nuisance”.  The representations are included in full at appendix 2.

9.6. Following receipt of the representations the applicants has responded to the 
points raised. The response in full is attached at appendix 3.

10. Considerations

10.1. Paragraphs 9.42 to 9.44 of the Section 182 Guidance sets how the 
Authority should decide what actions are appropriate.

“9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions 
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their 
areas. All licensing determinations should be considered on a case-
by-case basis. They should take into account any representations or 
objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises 
user as the case may be. 

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified 
as being appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and 
proportionate to what it is intended to achieve. 

9.44 Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives requires an assessment of what 
action or step would be suitable to achieve that end. While this does 
not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that no lesser step 
will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential 
burden that the condition would impose on the premises licence holder 
(such as the financial burden due to restrictions on licensable 
activities) as well as the potential benefit in terms of the promotion of 
the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the authority 
ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are 
limited to consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing 

Page 49



outside those parameters. As with the consideration of licence 
variations, the licensing authority should consider wider issues such 
as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative 
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and the track 
record of the business. Further advice on determining what is 
appropriate when imposing conditions on a licence or certificate is 
provided in Chapter 10. The licensing authority is expected to come to 
its determination based on an assessment of the evidence on both the 
risks and benefits either for or against making the determination.”

10.3.  The Live Music Act 2012 allows any premises with a licence that allows the 
consumption of alcohol on the premises to have live amplified music 
between 08:00 and 23:00 without a licence. This only applies when the 
audience is under 500 people. The Legislative Reform (Entertainment 
Licensing) Order 2014 has amended the Licensing Act so that there is a 
similar provision for recorded music, and also states that any conditions 
relating to any of this entertainment would not have any effect between 
8am and 11pm. There is a safeguard within the Licensing Act that at a 
Review hearing the provisions of the Live Music Act could be disapplied.

11. Recommendation

11.1. The Sub-Committee determines the application in the light of written and 
oral evidence and resolves to take such steps as it considers appropriate 
and proportionate for the promotion of the licensing objectives of;

a) the prevention of crime and disorder
b) the prevention of public nuisance
c) public safety
d) the protection of children from harm.

11.2. The steps that the Sub-Committee may take are: 

a) to grant the licence subject to such conditions as the authority 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
and the mandatory conditions

b) to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates;

c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the designated premises 
supervisor;

d) to reject the application.

Footnote:
Issues relating to financial, legal, environmental, economic and equalities 
implications have been considered and any information relevant to the decision is 
included within the report.

Page 50



Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOUVING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. lf you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. ln all cases ensure that
your answers are inside the boxes and wriften in black ink. Use additional sheets if
necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

'^,u" 
(6a!lnN K!a. p.N

(lnsert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and Uwe are making this application
to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the
Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 - Premises details

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Nondomestic rateable value of
oremises G

Part2 - Applicant details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as
appropriate

Please tick as

a) an individual or individuals *

b) a person other than an individual *

i as a limited company/limited liability
partnership

ii as a partnership (other than limited
liability)

iii as an unincorporated association or

iv other (for example a statutory corporation)

c) a recognised club

d) a charity

{ d.rt"complete section (A)

please c.omplete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

tr
tr
u
tr
tr
tr

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

(,r*)euu c-or-rnc-€
6eoc-*r es T6G.
SunF -r- es6uqy
Doase\

Post town Sune T-€s RuAy Postcode SPn o1.W

Page 51

aileen.powell_2
Typewriter
Appendix 1 - Application



I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the {
premises for licensable activities; or
I am making the application pursuant to a

statutory function or

a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

n
n

e) the proprietor of an educational establishment please complete section (B)

0 a health service body tr please complete section (B)

g) a person who is registered under Part 2 of the n pbase complete section (B)
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

ga) a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of tr please complete section (B)
Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008
(within the meaning of that Part) in an
independent hospital in England

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in tr please complete section (B)
England and Wales

" lf you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one
box below):

SECOND INDMDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

M w lrrs tlr
Miss tr M

s
tr OtherTitle (for

example, Rev)

surname 
Kalg.a oN First names- -- A/ftr(RNJ (os_s

Dateof birth lam lSyearsoldorover ff eteasetickyes

Nationality B(trrSf(

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contacttelephone number I 
E+nail address
(optional)

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home ffice online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit'share code' provided to the applicant by that service (please
see note 15 for information)

I rr,r tr Mrs n Miss n M n other Title (for

Page 52



r s example, r<ev)

Sumame First names

Date of birth I am 18 years old or over t] Pbase tick yes

Nationality

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the gdigit'share code' provided to the applicant by that service: (please
see note 15 for information)

Cunent residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHERAPPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate
please give any registered number. ln the case of a partnership or otherioint venture
(other than a body corporate), please give the name and address of each party
concerned.

Name

Address

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

Telephone number (if any)

E-mai! address (optional)

Page 53



Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

C o ,-r n,h .1 I o r*l- h. cr. S rn <,[\ h ary&[ert ,J
(,,rJ<* q.F{r- SeJ*r^\ vp q. [.*.,-7 B*& hrL"4r<

q t+.r n o o rl. c-.o .tcko.is + tjy'c,ar-- lr/,t * JU."r.-f rn t3l^,t-

b{. .S<-rvc}r .

Part 3 Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start?

lf you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?

lf 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at
any one time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regutated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) ll"^?.:" 
tick all that

' apply

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wresfling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e) live music (if ticking yes, fillin box E)

0 recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

Ii\ anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
"t (if ticking yes, fillin box H)

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box l)_

Supplv of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

ln all eases complete boxes K, L and M

tr
n
tr
u
n
tr
tr
n

n
d

Page 54



Will the performance of a plav take place
indoors or outdoors or both - please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Plays
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

State anv seasonal variations for performing plavs (please
read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises
for the performance of plavs at different times to those listed
in the column on the left. please list (please read guidance note
6)

Page 55



Will the exhibition of films take place
indoors or outdoors or both - please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Films
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please sive further details here (please read guidance note 4)

State anv seasonal variations forthe exhibition of films
(please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises
for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in
the column on the left. please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 56



c

lndoor sporting
events
Standard days and
timings (please read
ouidance note 7)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State anv seasonal variations for indoor sporting events
(please reao guroance note c,

Wed

Thur Non sta[dard timings. Where you intend to use the premises
for indoor sportinq events at diffurent times to those listed in
the column on the left. please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Page 57



Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the boxing or wrestlinq entertainment
take place indoors or outdoors or both -
please tick (please read guidance note 3)

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

State anv seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainment (please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises
for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to
those listed in the column on the lefl please list (please read
guidance note 6)

Page 58



Live music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of live music take
place indoors or outdoors or both - please
tick (please read guidance note 3)

Please qive further details here (please read guidance note 4)

State anv seasonal variations for the performance of live
music (please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises
for the oerformance of live music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 6)

Page 59



Will the plavinq of recorded music take
place indoors or outdoors or both - please
tick (please read guidance note 3)

Recorded music
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please sive further details here (please read guidance note 4)

State anv seasonal variations forthe plavinq of recorded
music (please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timinqs. Where vou intend to use the premises
for the plaving of recorded music at different times to those
listed in the column on the left. please list (please read
guidance note 6)

Page 60



Performances of
dance
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the performance of dance take place
indoors or outdoors or both - please tick
(please read guidance note 3)

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

State anv seasonal variations for the performance of dance
(please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timinqs. Where vou intend to use the
premises for the performance of dance at different times to
those listed in the column on the left please list (please read
guidance note 6)

Page 61



Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be
providing

Anything of a similar
description to that
f;alling within (e), (0
or (g)
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will this entertainrnent take place indoors
or outdoors or both - please tick (please
read guidance note 3)

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

State anv seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
description to that fallins within (e). (fl or (sl (please read
guidance note 5)

Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the
premises for the entertainment of a similar description to
that fallinq within (e). (fl or (q) at different times to those
listed in the column on the left. please list (please read
guidance note 6)

Page 62



Late night
refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the provision of late night
refreshment take place indoors or
outdoors or both - please tick (please read
guidance note 3)

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

State anv seasonal variations forthe provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 5)

Non standard timinqs. l,Vhere vou intend to use the
premises for the provision of late night refreshment at
different times. to those listed in the column on the left.
please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 63



J

Supply of alcohol
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Will the supplv of alcohol be for
consumption - please tick (please read
guidance note 8)

On the
premises

w
Offthe
premises

tr
Day Start Finish Both n
Mon I 2oo 230: State anv seasonal variations for the supplv of alcohol

(pease reao guEance note 5)

Non standard timings. llUhere vou intend to use the
premises for the supplv of alcohol at different times to those
listed in the column on the left. olease list (olease read

Tue iZoo Z3oc

Wed iZoo l3oo

Thur lZoo 23cxr

Fri 1/*> 23oq guidance note 6)

LOLr*rr LJe- 5oesk5.
Sat l2€ 23os

Sun lzo,Q Z3o\)

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence
as designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to
work in the checklist at the end of the form):

Please highlight any adult entertainment or selices, activities, other entertainment
or matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concem in
respect of children (please read guidance note 9).

K

Name Nhf clfU
Dateof birth 

Postcode I 
Personal licence number (if known)

lssuing licensing authority (if known)

Page 64



L.l<- h^i.,<

c"J p robi.n ^,-

ef gtoss-5
aur\.rr,( o"A
l, Xunr

r1o r<-al on +o

t1; ut{- at-t[d"er-,

o!. , UJ.nr.- k;1

k"^
It- rs

+heiq tS

Jr.s h CI.

ofC=*-.A wttt
F,o-si b\ o.n a PS*t Jar.^^{-

State anv seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)

(,rJ<- ar< flot op<n +- 1t--
gtb\rc I al\ o\rr gu<sts W
b<:ct< t^ aAvonq ar.o\ bool(-

fl4.- g^;)^,.te- h.:uEc aarCltSr trrt-J

Hours premises are
open to the public
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Non standard timinqs, Where vou intend the premises to be
ooen to the oublic at different times from those listed in the
column on the lefl please list (please read guidance note 6)

M

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing obiectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 1CI

w<
4r-<-

ar.\
t^^(

W ul.l no+ E<rve-
A:""f . E *3la+-g,^-'i^1 .f
ru;tl qsk +o b.

alco\^( J. B.,4SI.J: W["-.

Or<- ha.u*1 q g. d +/"r,{
b<-- nory K fl4 Je.l*,-
g,t&7 ofi corn<- ;s,A&.

Page 65



b) The prevention of crime and disorder

(,tJ< wtl\ Aoh g<rv< f., Jr<.tl
{.*,t<-, or.) c 

$rre sks tdd\ =h, o^

lc-pzrts7 S"*r* Spn.,,k*l

d*"5
Oua

c) Public safuty

b.Je- urrfl lcat+ our g.; eskt hSrd.-e. oc ;
fl.4 bqcl< Sa.Ll.n, ff*r<- lJ t'to tutu.r fi^qC

W ula GcnAe c^ (rorrl-oc( u (t- "*ila Dternbcrsol {L-( p.ril'<- 
^ 

r..lt on o\r r rrrc - 
.t Ot.t f pre.n.i5ag

d) The prevention of public nuisance

U( t,l.l.ll col*,-o( 1l^( r,oiw tL hqvL^( G^ ;
)r"4- becl< gc,r)vn, .Gr ez-e-**<{.e l,^in;l H,ue+r Pr-
Sg*-a.**s nois. a.,A l.,u,t Sddt r ti"l\1.. lf-
Fe!t,*+d. l.r€. Cat 4*Sk )ueJkS -l-, 60.'r(- UlSr&- .

aL<- ohy Chld,o^ .t"r" t^rrtl

$u<.t't-s €,^ o\^., ^ c;l{*e^. til(

.ffJ"rtfuI"ff-L# n,f.*:
havs W/^ b. CIr f

l<-*p q (As€wtl)

Ghecklist:

e) The orotection of children from harm

Please tick to indicate agreement

o I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. tr
o I have enclosed the plan of the premises. tr
o I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and t]

others where applicable.

e I have enclosed the consentform completed by the individual lwish to be W
designated premises supervisor, if applicable.

o I understand that I must now advertise my apptication. W
r I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application V

willbe rejected.. [Applicable to all individualapplicants, including those in a partnership which is
not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability
partnershipsl I have induded documents demonstrating my entitlement to work W

Page 66



in the United Kingdom or my share code issued by the Home ffice online right
to work checking service (please read note 15).

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A
FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WTH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO
iIAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE UABLE ON SUiIItiARY CONVICTION TO A FINE
OFANYATIOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24BOF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FORA
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR
IiIiiIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO
IS SUBJECT TO CONDINONS AS TO EiIPLOYiIENT wlLL BE UABLE TO A CIUL
PENALTY UNDER SECNON {5 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY
ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAIIE ACT, VWLL BE COMITIITTING
AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO !N THE KNOWLEDGE, OR wlTH REASONABLE
CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EiTPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Patl4 - Signatures (please read guidance note 1 1)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see
guidance note 12). lf signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

For joint applications, signature of 2d applicant or 2d applicant's solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). lf signing on behalf of the applicant,
please state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Declaration

[Applicable to individualapplicants only, including those in a
partnership which is not a limited liability partnershipl I understand
I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the
entiflement to live and work in the UK (or if I am subiect to a
condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying
on of a licensable activity) and that my licence wil! become invalid
if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read
guidance note 15).

The DPS named in this application form is entifled to work in the
UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from
doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy
of his or her proof of entiflement to work, or have conducted an
online right to work check using the Home ffice online right to
work checking service which confirmed their right to work (please
see note 15)

Signature

Date 2*l crl ZoL\
Capacity

Page 67



Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for conespondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 14)

NAfhAN p-.en<>*>

Posttown | Postcode I
Telephone number (if any)

lf you would prefer us to conespond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and
layout and any other information which e,ould be relevant to the licensing objectives.
Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a
place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where
the place will be and its proximity to the premises.
ln terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on
anyday, provided thatthe audience does notexceed 500.
Films: no licence is required for'not-for-profrt film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 5O0 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures
that each such screening abides by age classification ratings.
lndoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed
1000.
Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wresfling
between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Gombined fighting sports - defined as a contest, exhibition or
display which combines boxing or wresfling with one or more martial arts -
are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor
sporting event.
Live music: no licence permission is required for:

1.

2.

Page 68



Page 69



Representation Number 1 
 
13th June 2021 
 
Licencing Office 
Dorset Council 
County Hall 
Colliton Park 
Dorchester 
Dorset   DT1 1XJ 

 
Dear Sirs 
 
Objection to Alcohol Licence Application for Well Cottage, Bedchester 

 

I am writing to object to the Alcohol Licence Application in the strongest possible 
terms. My objection is based on my concerns that this new licence may increase the 
possibility of public nuisance for the many dwellings nearby, including my own.  The 
supply of alcohol will encourage a drinking culture which invariably makes its way into 
the streets.  I am also concerned about the noise which will result from amplified 
sound of all types being permitted every day of the week until 11pm.  There would 
also be an increase in comings and goings in this rural hamlet in which there are 
small country lanes which could endanger local residents and their families and also 
the residents of the Well Cottage and their families too. 
 
I am particularly concerned about noise nuisance as my garden backs onto the 
garden of Well Cottage. 
 
I often visit my cottage, particularly in the recent past due to ill health and have 
needed to convalesce there.  This would not be possible if this licence was granted 
due to the fact that I understand that there will be activities such as hen weekends, 
karaoke, cocktail making sessions, bands and or singers playing music and also a 
mention of Bluetooth speakers in the garden.  This information can be found on the 
website of English Cottage Vacations.  This noise level will also cause upset to my 
dog who will bark continuously at this disruption.   
 
I hope you will take all of my above concerns into consideration and please do not 
hesitate to contact me if I can assist you any further. 
  
Yours faithfully 
 
 
Representation Number 2 
 

 

Dear Sir/Madam 
 
We write to object to the application for an alcohol licence for Well Cottage in 
Bedchester. 
 
As close neighbours to Well Cottage, our reason for objecting is for the prevention of 

Page 70

aileen.powell_3
Typewriter
Appendix 2 - Representations



public nuisance. 
 
The application states that it is "just a few glasses of wine being offered with dinner" 
so why the need for the licensing hours of midday to 11pm? On the owners' website, 
an "All Inclusive" package offers "alcohol including wine, served cocktails, top-shelf 
liquor and after-dinner drinks". The application is clearly not for a few glasses of wine 
to be served with dinner.  
 
Drinking alcohol clearly has an effect on social behaviour; people become louder and 
create noise.  
 
We personally feel that the free flow of alcohol throughout the day and late at night 
will lead to noise and possibly anti-social behaviour when most residents nearby are 
in bed trying to sleep. 
 
There is also mention of a "blue tooth speaker" on the application which is clearly a 
public nuisance and would interfere with neighbours' rights to sleep. The 
consumption of alcohol alongside entertainment outside in the garden at night may 
introduce light pollution - another public nuisance - in an otherwise unlit area. 
 
We are concerned at the offering of "... entertainers, singers and bands" on the 
owners' website which would be a public nuisance in such a rural area. 
 
Bedchester is a small hamlet near Fontmell Magna. It is a rural area with a 
community of young families and elderly people. We have young children who are in 
bed early and a 99-year-old neighbour enjoying the peace and tranquility in her later 
years. Noise travels far in the countryside and we feel the availability of alcohol put 
together with any kind of entertainment, seven days a week, would have an intrusive 
effect on the residents living nearby. 
 
In summary, this application is inappropriate in a quiet hamlet where family life is 
important and we would ask you to refuse it. 
 

 

 

Representation Number 3 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 

 

I am writing to object to the application for a premises licence (selling alcohol) by 
Nathan and Laura Kurton at Well Cottage in Bedchester, Shaftesbury, Dorset, SP7.  
 

As my bedroom looks directly over Well Cottage and garden, my privacy would be 
affected and I am very concerned about noise AND light pollution to local residents 
and myself. Also, there is an abudence of wildlife nearby; such as barn owls, bats 
and birds which would be disturbed if this alcohol licence was permitted.  
 

I am happy for the premises to be run as a bed and breakfast but my main objection 
is the selling of alcohol.  
 

Yours faithfully 

Page 71



Representation Number 4 
 
RE: WELL COTTAGE, BEDCHESTER, SHAFTESBURY, DORSET  SP7 0JW 

 

We are writing to register our objections to the application for an alcohol licence by Nathan Kurton For Well 

Cottage, Bedchester, Shaftesbury Dorset  SP7 0JW. 

 

The basis of this opposition is that granting a licence will not promote the licencing objectives, particularly the 

prevention of  ‘Public Nuisance’. 

 

Well Cottage lies within Bedchester a very quiet hamlet and noise travels so easily as no noise from traffic etc  

 

The applicants have listed the property on various websites as a luxury B&B offering a fully inclusive package 

including all drinks, dinner as well as offering entertainment like singers and Bands.  Our concerns are: 

 

- firstly this is more than they have implied on their licence application which says ‘afternoon 
cocktails & wine with dinner might be served’.  However if someone is booking a luxury stay, 
all inclusive, including dinner then they will be expecting full range of drinks. 

- Secondly why would a B & B (Bed & Breakfast) need a drinks licence, how can you offer all 
inclusive for a B&B – would that not be a hotel? 

- In their application they have said that they are looking to book the whole house exclusively. 
The websites say that people can book all 3 bedrooms but as they property we believe is 
only a 3 bedroom where will the applicants sleep and be able to keep on site to manage the 
noise and anti social behaviour? 

- If the applicants are offering entertainment such as singers/band then this will create further 
noise as well as encourages people to sit outside and encourage them to drink more. 

- This is a very quiet hamlet and noise travels so easily as no noise from traffic etc  
- The applicants have made no effort to communicate with the local residents to let them 

know that they are applying for a licence and their plans. 
 

In view of the above I would urge the Licencing Authority to refuse the application. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

Page 72



Thank you for your email raising the concerns regarding our premises license application. I 

completely understand our neighbours' reservations and objections towards our license application 

and so I will begin by quickly explaining a little more detail about our business.  

Where I have mentioned We or Us I am referring to my wife Laura and I running a business called 

English Cottage Vacation. 

  

We are a luxury getaway, (a luxury retreat is another way of describing it)- we have found it so 

difficult to place us into a category as there is really nothing else like us in the UK and that is why 

sometimes we end up under the B&B label. We admit we are not a B&B as we offer an 'all inclusive' 

package, however we are also not a hotel as we only ever have one family or party staying at a time. 

In an ideal 'non-covid- world' we are offering a luxury experience to north american clients, it is 

actually quite an expensive trip (£19,400.00 for 7 nights) and so we are attracting very professional 

folks. In our experience with providing these kinds of vacations to similar clients on luxury yachts, it is 

not the alcohol they are paying for (many of our clients are actually tea total) it is just the overall 

service of not having to get their wallet out every 5 minutes. They can travel to England and just 

know that they are going to be well looked after with good clean accommodation, great food and a 

fabulous trip exploring the English countryside.  

  

We are going to offer a maximum of 20 weeks per year to visiting guests, maybe less if we can. It is 

not going to be a full time 365 day a year commercial property where there are always people 

staying with us. Most of our clients are widows, couples who are more often than not retired or 

couples with young children- most are looking to be up bright and early with the birds to enjoy a nice 

hearty breakfast before a full day out exploring various points of interest. Then returning home at the 

end of the day for a relaxing cup of tea and a wonderful dinner before an early night. 

  

This year is obviously a strange time for everybody, and because of this we are offering a staycation 

package and B&B option to UK clients (still whole house bookings and not individual room bookings) 

while the countries borders are still closed, but this is not the business we want to provide in the long 

term after August this year. We are only doing this right now in an effort to survive financially 

through this year. We will not be providing alcohol to B&B clients. 

  

Well Cottage is a 3/4 bedroom house with 4 bathrooms/ensuites. We have 3 bedrooms upstairs, and 

we have a room downstairs which is a combination of our office and our bedroom when we have 

guests staying. In each guest bedroom there will be a welcome pack and in the introduction we will 

explain that we live in a small hamlet and thus when out in the garden please keep noise levels to a 

minimum. 

  

The suggestion on our website for a singer/band is only there as an example of what we could 

organise if they had a very special occasion. However we do not want to appear that we are 

encouraging this activity and so we are going to remove it completely from our website. 

  

Page 73

aileen.powell_4
Typewriter
Appendix 3 - Response



We understand we have not raised this locally, we do apologise for this. We did consider the 

'Nextdoor' app or the parish council but we thought it was a bit overkill as we are just going to be a 

tiny little business and didn't want it to appear more than it is. Obviously we have only recently 

moved to the area and haven't met many of our neighbours in Bedchester, we definitely want to 

work with the community and create friendships; we are very understanding and thoughtful people. 

We would like to invite the person/people who raised the objection to our home for a tea or coffee to 

discuss in person if required. We love Bedchester and appreciate how quiet it is at night and we know 

how sound travels over fields easily so we will be conscious of any noise that is created and do our 

utmost to prevent a public nuisance. 

  

Kind regards 

  

Nathan Kurton 

 

Page 74



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Election of Chairman and Statement for the Procedure of the Meeting
	Licensing Sub-Committee Procedure for Taxi

	5 New Premises Licence Application for Last Post, Dorchester
	Appendices - Last Post Redacted
	Appendix 2 Last Post.docx
	EH – 7 May 2021
	Response - 12 May 2021

	Appendix 3 - Last Post.docx
	Appendix 3 – Representation from Resident
	Representation - 1 June 2021
	Response from Applicant 3 June 2021
	Further Email from Resident 9 June 2021


	Appendix 4 - conditions Last Post.docx
	APPENDIX 2 - Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule
	Prevention of crime and disorder
	Public safety
	Prevention of public nuisance
	Protection of children from harm

	Appendix 2 police  Last Post.docx
	Police – 17 May 2021
	Response - 17 May 2021



	6 New Premises Licence Application for Wells Cottage, Bedchester
	Appendices Wells Cottage Redacted

	8 Exempt Appendix
	HC Appendices


